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ADDENDUM NO. 1 
 
 
Solicitation No.: RFP #20150428-0-AV-01 
Solicitation Title: Self-Service Baggage Cart Concession at Fort Lauderdale-Hollywood 

International Airport 
 
Date Of Addendum: June 5, 2015 
 
 
Attention all potential bidders: 

 
 Should Addendum:  Information included in this Addendum is for clarification purposes. 

This Addendum SHOULD be acknowledged or returned with your Request for Letters of 
Interest (RFP) submittal. 

 
 
To all prospective proposers, please note the following changes and clarifications: 
 
1. Page 6, Electronic submission guidelines – Smarte Carte, Inc. is requesting clarification 

on the electronic submission guidelines in this section.  Item #1 notes that the electronic 
version should be a single .pdf file that contains our entire response.  However item #2 
requests that the responses to the evaluation criteria be presented in Microsoft Word, 
Excel, or Adobe pdf files.  Does the county want the proposers to prepare a pdf file for the 
entirety of the response and then an additional section that has separate files for the 
evaluation criteria?  As a follow up to that question, the evaluation criteria has been 
disseminated as a .pdf file by the County and the response information to that can be 
entered in a variety of programs with any attachments noted and assembled 
appropriately.  That section can then be assembled as part of the overall .pdf. 

 
Answer:  The entire response must be submitted as one .pdf file.  In addition you must 
submit any typed responses in word format, any pictures in .pdf format, and any 
spreadsheets in excel format.  These would all be separate files in addition to the entire 
.pdf response. 

 
2. Currently there is a token system in use for passengers that utilize the shuttle bus 

between the RCC and the terminals. Will that same type of program be continued under 
this new solicitation? 

 



Solicitation No. 20150428-0-AV-01 
Addendum No. 1 

 

Page 2 of 5 
 

Answer:  Yes.  Section 3.1(a) of the Agreement Terms linked to this RFP states "The 
Concessionaire shall provide passengers who pay for Carts and are going to and from 
the RCC a token, to avoid having travelers pay twice for Carts during one visit to the 
Airport and the Concessionaire shall not add any surcharge(s) to the end user's cost for 
use of Concessionaire's service." 

3. Page 32, Percentage Fee/MAG proposal – In this section the County requests the 
proposers to propose a “compensation structure that will permit free carts to be offered 
to arriving passengers in the FIS”.  Without knowing the timing of this service level 
change it is very difficult to propose a compensation structure. Changing back to a non-
user pay FIS orientation will require additional capital and at the same time the original 
capital outlay for the management units will not yet have been fully amortized.  
Historically Broward County has requested proposals for a variety of different service 
level scenarios.  It would certainly be possible to do this type of response again if that is 
a consideration.  However, without specific timing, providing a quote for a changing 
service level in some unknown future is not possible. 

 

Answer:  If the airport decides to offer free carts in the FIS, the decision to do so would 
be made prior to finalizing an agreement with the selected concessionaire.  Therefore, 
the proposed compensation structure would be for the entire length of the contract and 
would take effect on the effective date of the agreement. 

4. As part of a previous agreement there are currently stainless steel “carpet protectors” 
in use as part of the Cart vending units inside the terminals. Will the County be 
requiring carpet protectors as part of this new solicitation?  

 

Answer:  There are no requirements for carpet protectors stated in the RFP.  If the 
concessionaire chooses to include carpet protectors as part of the proposed equipment, 
that would be taken into consideration under the evaluation criteria.  

5. On page 32 of the RFP it states that "Carts should be constructed of new material 
(high grade, non- tarnishing stainless steel to prevent rust and corrosion". Would 
you accept other materials as well if it can be proven to be constructed of high 
quality material that is corrosion and rust proof? 

 

Answer:  The carts need to be constructed of a new material.  The quality of the carts 
and materials used will be weighted in the evaluation criteria. 

 

6. Would we be able to offer more than one cart model option for this proposal? 
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Answer:   Yes, However, only the cart(s) that will be used for operating the concession 
should be included in the proposal.  If your operation would use more than one cart 
models, then you would propose the other models as well.  The Evaluation Committee 
will rank based on the proposal, and will not select a cart option.  Selection of a cart 
option will occur during negotiations with the selected concessionaire. 

 

7. What is the length of the anticipated agreement? 
 

Answer:  The term of the Agreement is five (5) years. 

8. Will any extension periods be part of the agreement and if so for how long? 
 

Answer:  There is no option for extension of this Agreement.  Broward County 
Administrative Code does not allow for a term in excess of five (5) years. 

9. Are we able to submit two different pricing options for the airport to consider, between $4 
and $5 pricing for example? 
 

Answer:  You can only submit one (1) cart rental price with the proposal.  The Evaluation 
Committee can only rank the proposal and cannot select a pricing option as part of the 
proposal.  As part of the proposal the respondent is asked to propose a compensation 
structure that would permit free carts to be offered to arriving passengers in the Federal 
Inspection Station (FIS).  If that compensation structure includes a different rental rate in 
other areas of the airport, a different price may be included in the free FIS proposal.   

10. Is a Balance Sheet and P&L acceptable, or are there any other minimum required 
schedules? 
 
Answer:  Yes.  The RFP requires the firm submit its most recent two (2) years of financial 
statements for review which would be the Balance Sheet and Profit and Loss Statement. 

 
11. Attachment K of the RFP it states, "Respondent shall represent to the County that if it is 

awarded a contract  with  the County it will comply with the following worker retention 
requirement, which shall become a term of its contract with the County:  The vendor shall  
offer continued employment  to the employees of the immediately preceding 
concessionaire for a period of forty-five (45) days, unless the vendor determines and 
demonstrates to  the County that such employees are unnecessary for the vendor's 
provision of concession services, or that such employees do not have the experience 
required for the vendor's provision of concession services. Employees retained may be 
terminated for cause within the forty-five (45) day period.  However, this worker retention 
requirement shall not apply to employees who are exempt from overtime compensation 
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requirements of the federal Fair Labor Standards Act. Nothing in this provision obligates a 
vendor to continue the employment of any individual beyond such forty-five (45) day 
period. Compliance with this provision shall be considered a matter of responsiveness."  

  
Since we have to retain the current provider's staffs as outlined in the RFP for a set time 
period, can you please provide a breakdown separately of the current salary and benefit 
costs for agents for the past year? 

 
What is the FTE and number of employees does the current provider? 

 
Answer:  Attachment K will not apply to this solicitation.  Attachment K can be omitted 
from the response. 

 
12. The reported Gross Revenue on the monthly sales reports supplied by FLL divided by 

claimed PAX uses are equal on average to $3.50 per cart. 
Is this calculation on Gross Revenue less rewards or other deductions? 

 
Answer:  The only exclusions from Gross Revenue that are permitted are listed 
below in the Gross Revenue definition.  The following is the definition of Gross 
Revenue in the current Self Service Baggage Cart Agreement: 
 
"Gross Revenues," and "Gross Revenues of Concessionaire," shall mean the 
aggregate of all sales, rentals, charges or other fees charged by Concessionaire at 
the Airport, whether received or not, and all other items and revenues of every 
business conducted by Concessionaire at the Airport or from the operations of 
Concessionaire under this Agreement, whether for cash or credit, without any 
deduction for credit card discounts or credit card services, whether the same shall 
be paid or unpaid.  "Gross Revenues" shall include all monies paid or payable to the 
Concessionaire and/or any of its sublessee, assignees, contractors or management 
companies that are doing business at any portion of the Airport premises.  The term 
shall not include federal, state or municipal taxes.  "Gross Renvenues" shall not 
include: (1) sales tax collection allowance paid by the State of Florida to the 
Concessionaire as compensation for the keeping of prescribed records and the 
proper accounting and remittance of state sales tax; (2) any charges on a 
reimbursement basis as mutually agreed upon by the Aviation Department and 
Concessionaire, which may include any reimbursement paid to Concessionaire by 
the Aviation Department for providing baggage cart services in the FIS; (3) any 
refunds made by the Concessionaire to customers, if approved by the Aviation 
Department and made for reasons other than unacceptable or unsatisfactory 
services; (4) any taxes imposed by law to and paid by the customer and directly 
payable by Concessionaire to a taxing authority.   

 
13. Has Advertising or any other revenue been calculated into the Gross sales figures? 
 

Answer:  No.  The Gross Revenue reported has only been for the rental of self-
service baggage carts. 
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14. The sales figures supplied are only until April of 2014, can you supply the most 

recent figures through 2015? 
 

Answer:  The reports that this question is referring to were not provided as part of 
this RFP and were obtained through a Public Records Request.  Please see the 
attached for the requested reports for May 2014 through April 2015. 

 
15. Can you supply the above including by CMU location as well if available? 
 

Answer:  The County does not have reports by CMU location. 
 
16. Has there been any advertising on the carts in the past three years? 

If above is so, can you supply any and all cart advertising revenue collected during 
the past three years? 

 
Answer:  There has been no advertising on the carts for the term of the current 
Agreement. 

17. Will the attendance list of the pre-response conference be available online? 

Answer:  Yes.  Please see the attached for the sign in sheet. 
 

 
All other terms, conditions and specifications remain unchanged for this RFP. 
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